
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 4 
City Council Agenda 
June 19, 2014 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City Council Meeting 7:00 PM 

June 19, 2014 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

 

Notice is hereby given that a Council Meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Lucas will be held on Thursday, June 19, 2014, 7:00 PM at the Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. 

Agenda 

Call to Order 
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Determination of Quorum 
Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizens’ Input 

At this time citizens who have pre-registered by filling out a “Request to Speak” sheet and have 
submitted the sheet to the City Secretary before the call to order will be allowed to speak on any 
matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed 
three minutes. No Council action or discussion may take place on a matter until such matter has 
been placed on a future agenda and posted in accordance with law. 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the 
City of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 4 
City Council Agenda 
June 19, 2014 

Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda is used to increase the efficiency of time. All items listed 
under the Consent Agenda may be considered by a single motion, second and 
passage by a majority vote of the Council present at the time of consideration. Any 
member of Council may remove an item from the Consent Agenda prior to a 
motion to act upon the agenda. 
              

3) Consent and Approve: 

a) The minutes from the June 5, 2014 City Council Regular 
meeting. [Wingo] 

b) Resolution # R-2014-06-00422  a resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, hereinafter 
referred to as “Applicant,” designating certain officials as being 
responsible for, acting for, and on behalf of the “Applicant” in 
dealing with Collin County, hereinafter referred to as “Grantor,” 
for the purpose of participating in the Collin County Parks and 
Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program, hereinafter 
referred to as the “Program”; certifying that the “Applicant” is 
eligible to receive program assistance; certifying that the 
“Applicant” matching share is readily available; and dedicating 
the proposed site for permanent public park and open space 
uses; and providing for an effective date.  [Hilbourn] 

c) An Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and 
Lovejoy Independent School District concerning Emergency 
Medical Services being provided by the City of Lucas at all 
Lovejoy Independent School District home games (Varsity, 
Junior Varsity and Middle School). [Kitchens] 

d) An Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and TML 
Multistate Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool 
concerning employee healthcare benefits. [Meehan] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 4 
City Council Agenda 
June 19, 2014 

e) A COBRA Continuation of Coverage Administrative 
Agreement between the City of Lucas and TML Multistate 
Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool concerning the 
requirements of Continuation of Coverage of healthcare benefits 
as required by Federal law. [Meehan] 

Regular Agenda 

4) Update on Stormwater program. [Hilbourn] 

5) Discuss and consider a professional services agreement with Kimley-
Horn & Associates, Inc. for W. Lucas Road at Lewis Lane Capacity 
Analysis and Traffic Signal Timing Evaluation at the Southview 
Drive and Country Club Road intersections with Lucas Road; and to 
authorize the City Manager to execute said agreement in the amount 
not to exceed $11,000.00. [Hilbourn/Foerster] 

6) Discuss and consider the Microsoft Platform Licensing upgrade in the 
amount of $29,953, authorize the City Manager to purchase and 
execute agreements approved to form by the city attorney for the 
upgrade, and adjust the FY 13-14 budget accordingly. 
[Clarke/Foerster] 

7) Discuss and consider the award of a bid and enter into an agreement 
for the Central Fire Station Addition Project and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the contract. [Hilbourn] 

8) Discuss and consider the approval of a Development Agreement 
between the City of Lucas and Lucas Christian Academy concerning 
a request to waive or defer required impact fees until start of the 
second phase of construction. [Hilbourn] 

9) Discuss and consider allowing staff to move forward with 
annexations for Edgewood Estates, Claremont Springs Phase 2, 
Cimarron, and two lots containing fireworks stands on E. Lucas 
Road. [Hilbourn] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 4 
City Council Agenda 
June 19, 2014 

10) Discuss and consider the use of city facilities for non-city business 
meetings and events. [Wingo/Clarke] 

11) Adjournment. 

As authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Approval 

Approved by: Mayor Rebecca Mark, June 13, 2014. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the 
bulletin board at Lucas City Hall by 5:00 p.m. on or before Friday, June 
13, 2014, as required in accordance with Government Code §551.041. 

 

 
____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 

This building is wheelchair accessible. Any requests for sign interpretive services or other 
special requests for assistance of the hearing impaired must be made 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting. To make such arrangements, please call 972-727-8999 or email 
secretary@lucastexas.us. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
JUNE 19, 2014 

LUCAS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM:  

 Call to Order  
 Roll Call      Present  Absent 

Mayor Rebecca Mark              

Seat 1 CM Wayne Millsap           

Seat 2 CM Jim Olk            

Seat 3 CM Steve Duke           

Seat 4 CM Philip Lawrence             

Seat 5 CM Debbie Fisher             

Seat 6 MPT Kathleen Peele           

 

 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Staff Present: 

 

City Manager Joni Clarke     

City Secretary Kathy Wingo      

City Attorney Joe Gorfida, Jr.     

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

Finance Director Liz Exum     

Public Works Director Stanton Foerster    

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens       

Administrative Assistant Jennifer Faircloth  

    

 



Item No. 01 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 
 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Citizens’ Input. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 

Motion:  
 
No action required. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No. 02 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 

Items of Community Interest. 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, conservation 
efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the City of Lucas. 
[Fisher/Foerster] 

 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 

Motion:  
 
No action required. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No. 03a 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve the minutes from the June 5, 2014 City Council Regular 
meeting. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Minutes from the June 5, 2014 City Council Regular meeting. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 

Motion:  
 
Approve with Consent Agenda Motion. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

City Council Regular Meeting &  
Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop 6:00 PM 

June 5, 2014 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present or (Absent): 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark    Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap   Councilmember Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke   Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
Staff Present: 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke   City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida   Fire Chief Jim Kitchens 
Public Works Director Stanton Foerster Finance Director Liz Exum 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele led everyone in saying the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Regular Agenda 
1) City Secretary will administer the Oaths of Office to Councilmember(s) 

Millsap and Olk. 
 
City Secretary Kathy Wingo administered the Oaths of Office to 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap, Seat 1 and Councilmember Jim Olk, Seat 2. 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

2) Discuss and consider the appointment of a Mayor Pro Tem to serve for a 
period of one year, term ending May 31, 2015. 
 
MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to appoint Kathleen Peele 

as Mayor Pro Tem to serve for a period of one year, term ending 
May 31, 2015.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

Citizens’ Input 
3) Citizens’ Input. 

There was no one present who wished to speak during Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 
4) Items of Community Interest. 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the City of 
Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher stated that 2x month watering continues 
through March 2015.  Watch for the June newsletter for more information or 
visit the North Texas Municipal Water District’s (NTMWD) website.  
Councilmember Fisher went on to say that 50% of the water used by each 
household is used for outside watering. 

NTMWD will be releasing a media advisory on Friday, June 6th which states: 

NTMWD to begin using newly constructed Lake Texoma water pipeline.  
Officials with the NTMWD will be available on Friday, June 6, 2014, for 
media to view the recently completed Texoma pipeline.  The 46-mile pipeline 
will allow NTMWD to resume using water supply from Lake Texoma, which 
has been off-line since 2009 due to an infestation of the invasive zebra mussel.  
The closed pipeline system will be connected to the NTMWD’s water treatment 
facility where zebra mussels will be removed.  Restoring the Texoma supply is 
a good thing, and will provide water supply; however, it does not change the 
effects of drought on Lakes Lavon and Chapman.  We need everyone’s help.  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Follow our conservation strategy for this summer and use your sprinklers once 
every two weeks to water your lawn.  We need ALL-IN TOGETHER. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stated that the City has received 
six (6) sealed bids for the Fire Station Expansion Project.  The Committee will 
be reviewing the bids and bring back a recommendation to the City Council on 
June 19th. 

Daniel, a local boy scout, was in attendance at tonight’s City Council meeting 
to observe local government in action. 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda was presented for consideration and action. 

MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  Councilmember Jim Olk seconded 
the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

5) Consent and Approve: 

a) The minutes from the May 15, 2014 City Council Regular and the May 
17, 2014 City Council Workshop meetings. [Wingo] 

b) The Pave-It, Inc. contract for construction of the W. Lucas Road fire 
station driveway in the amount of $15,373.59 and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the agreement with a twenty percent (20%) contingency in the 
amount of $3,074.72 for a total of $18,448.31. [Foerster] 

Regular Agenda (Continued) 

6) Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 amending 
the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 5 titled “Fire 
Prevention and Protecting” by amending Article 5.03 “Fire Code” by amending 
Section 3301.1.3 of the International Fire Code 2003 Edition to prohibit the use 
of fireworks within 5,000 feet outside the City Limits of the City of Lucas. 
[Hilbourn] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Michelle Burch, 2908 Opal Court, McKinney came forward to speak in 
OPPOSITION of this ordinance.  Ms. Burch is owner of the Burch Fireworks 
located on E. Lucas Road. 

Robert Burch, 2908 Opal Court, McKinney came forward to speak in 
OPPOSITION of this ordinance. Mr. Burch is owner of the Burch Fireworks 
located on E. Lucas Road. 

Nathan Bullard, PO Box 398, Edgewood, Texas, came forward to express 
concerns with the proposed ordinance and to speak in OPPOSITION of said 
ordinance.  Mr. Bullard is the owner of Mr. Biggs Fireworks located on E. 
Lucas Road. 

At the May 15, 2014 regular City Council meeting, Fire Marshal Jason 
Browning gave a presentation regarding the current conditions and the impact 
to the safety and welfare of the public as it relates to the risk of fire for the 
upcoming Fourth of July holiday. 

The Lucas City Council discussed the safety of its residents and requested that 
staff continue to evaluate the City’s authority to regulate the igniting of 
fireworks within 5,000 feet of its city limits.  The use of fireworks increases the 
risk of fire and in light of our current drought-related conditions, the City 
Council would be proactively reducing the risk of fire. 

Jason Browning, Collin County Fire Marshall, came forward to give an update 
on the plan submitted this week to Collin County.  The property owners are still 
working on the submitted plan to meet the requirements of the county. 

There is no water in the area, water would have to be trucked in to the area to 
control any fire issues.  It was determined that there was a 4” water line, but no 
fire hydrant, in the area which is not adequate to control any fire should there be 
one. 

John Hafen, attorney for Mr. Biggs, 1125 Legacy Drive, Suite 250, Frisco, 
Texas, came forward to answer any questions concerning the event.  Barricades 
will be paid for directly, rather than reimbursing the county.  There would be 
off-duty officers that would staff the event to control the traffic, crowd, and 
overall safety.  The county will have a few deputies assigned the area on July 
4th.  Portable bathrooms will be made available on the premises.  Those are the 
three main concerns that the county had with the event. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Major Sanderson, Collin County Sheriff’s Office, stated there will be 
Supervisor on duty that has the ability to shut down the road if the needs arises 
or should the event become unsafe. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark asked the Council if they were willing to accept the 
traffic control as it is. 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap stated that fire danger has not been addressed.  
However, the waterline in the area is not adequate to fight grass fires which 
would be a concern. 

Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele said the businesses do a good job with their 
areas.  But the event has grown to such a magnitude that it has outgrown the 
area.  There is a huge fire risk.  There will be people who will leave the area to 
shoot their fireworks and firearms as well. 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap asked if Council should pass this ordinance, 
how and who will enforce it. 

Councilmember Jim Olk feels that the plan is not adequate to meet the safety 
and fire concerns. 

Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele stated that the plan submitted is better than 
nothing. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher asked that Council convene into Executive 
Session to seek advice from legal counsel at 7:22 p.m. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark stated as authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas 
Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive 
Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City 
Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Council reconvened into Regular Session at 7:29 p.m. 

There will be no action taken as a result of the Executive Session. 

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens came forward and said that the lake is dry and should 
there be a low humidity day it could be a disaster for Lucas.  It has the potential 
to be another Bastrop.  There is nothing in the plan for evacuation in the plan 
submitted should the need arise to evacuate the area. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

MOTION: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to approve 
Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 amending the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapter 5 titled “Fire Prevention and 
Protecting” by amending Article 5.03 “Fire Code” by amending 
Section 3301.1.3 of the International Fire Code 2003 Edition to 
prohibit the use of fireworks within 5,000 feet outside the City 
Limits of the City of Lucas with an effective date of July 10, 2014.  
Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the Motion.  Further 
discussion by Councilmember Jim Olk stating that this does not 
protect the citizens.as Council desired.  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen 
Peele withdrew her Motion, the seconded failed.   

MOTION: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to approve 
Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 amending the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapter 5 titled “Fire Prevention and 
Protecting” by amending Article 5.03 “Fire Code” by amending 
Section 3301.1.3 of the International Fire Code 2003 Edition to 
prohibit the use and sale of fireworks within 5,000 feet outside the 
City Limits of the City of Lucas with an effective date of July 10, 
2014.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the Motion.  
Motion failed.  Vote:  2-5, Councilmember(s) Fisher, Olk, Duke, 
Millsap and Mayor Rebecca Mark voting NAY. 

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve Ordinance # 
2014-06-00782 amending the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances by 
amending Chapter 5 titled “Fire Prevention and Protecting” by 
amending Article 5.03 “Fire Code” by amending Section 3301.1.3 
of the International Fire Code 2003 Edition to prohibit the use of 
fireworks within 5,000 feet outside the City Limits of the City of 
Lucas effective immediately on passage.  Motion dies with the lack 
of a second. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark called for any further Motions, being none, no action to 
be taken.  The ordinance number will be used at a later date. 

Council would like to see this come back soon to include all nuisances in the 
ETJ.  Council would like to also consider the annexation of this area. 

7) Discuss and consider the approval of an application for a preliminary plat for a 
parcel of land situated in ABS A0349 John Gray Survey, Tract 10, being a 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

30.6018± acres, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Highland 
Drive and Stinson Road. [Estates at Stinson Highlands] [Hilbourn] 

The Estates at Stinson Highlands is currently in the city’s ETJ. There is an 
approved development agreement that gives consideration to annexation, 
zoning, number of lots, and special conditions. The development agreements 
lists R-1 for consideration for zoning, must annex within ten days of final plat 
approval plus special conditions. 
 

1. Lot size minimum one acre, with a minimum of `150’ of road 
frontage. 

2. Setbacks: 50’ front, 30’ rear, 20’ each side (or ten percent of lot width 
whichever is less) 

3. Accessory building not to exceed 50% of the first floor air 
conditioned space of the main residence, must be made of the same 
materials as the main residence and must be behind the main 
residence. 

There is an approved concept plan that is part of the approved development 
agreement. The plat submitted substantially conforms to the approved concept 
plan. The only difference is the straight away were given curves to add 
character. 

Approved Concept Plan:  

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 8 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Proposed Preliminary Plat: 

 

 

This is an administrative approval.  The plat meets the cities requirements. 
Staff recommends approval as presented.  Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval at the May 8, 2014 Planning & Zoning Commission 
meeting. 
 
MOTION: Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to approve the 

preliminary plat for a parcel of land situated in ABS A0349 John 
Gray Survey, Tract 10, being a 30.6018± acres, located at the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Highland Drive and Stinson 
Road.  Councilmember Jim Olk seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

8) Discuss and consider any and all future elections for the City of Lucas to be 
conducted by Collin County Elections Administration. [Wingo] 

The May 10, 2014 Special Election was completed recently, with 567 registered 
voters casting a vote.  During the Early Voting city staff conducted the election 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 9 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

and on Election Day 5 individuals were hired to conduct the election.  While the 
past elections have been conducted by the City it is becoming more and more 
apparent that staff will no longer be able to help with the election and keep up 
with their dedicated duties.  There were times during this past election that it 
put an undue burden on staff just to keep all positions covered while voting was 
going on. 
 
During Early Voting, staff processed 351 voters.  73 of 351 voters inquired why 
it was necessary to go to two different locations to cast their ballots for the city 
and school elections.  Early Voting Clerks made sure that each voter who came 
in to cast their ballot in the city’s election were told where they could go to cast 
their ballot in the school’s election as well. 
 
The City of Lucas was one of two entities who did not contract with Collin 
County Elections Administration for the May 2014 Special Election, the other 
entity being Blue Ridge ISD. 

Collin County Elections Administration has been doing “vote centers” during 
election periods.  This allows any Collin County resident to vote at any of the 
polling locations throughout the county.  When Collin County Elections 
Administration conducts the elections voters are able to go to any polling 
location within the county to cast their ballot.  This is such a convenience to the 
voter and should prove to get more people out to vote. 

MOITON:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to approve the City 
of Lucas to contract with the Collin County Elections 
Administration to conduct the next election.  Councilmember 
Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  6-1, 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher voting NAY. 

The City Council took a short break, while Staff set up for the workshop.  The 
City Attorney left the meeting. 

Council reconvened into workshop session at 8:30 p.m. 

Fire Rescue Workshop 
9) Discuss and Consider items during the Fire Rescue Workshop to include the 

following: 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 10 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

a) Consider defining the service area for the Lucas Fire Department and 
determine whether to provide fire suppression services, emergency medical 
services or both to the following areas: 
 All areas with the Fire District as established by Collin County 
 All areas within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction 
 Seis Lagos Utility District (including the Brockdale development) 
 Inspiration Utility District 

 
The fire district map that was included in the packet is set by Collin County, 
not by the City of Lucas.  The City of Lucas, for providing fire protection in 
the fire district, gets $36,000 each year. 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke asked the Council to consider the following 
questions: 

1. Does Council wish to continue the coverage in Seis Lagos, which now 
would include the new Brockdale development? 

2. Does Council wish to provide service in the Inspiration Utility District? 
3. What does the Council see as the service area for the City of Lucas? 

 
The answers to these questions would provide input for staff in preparing for 
the upcoming budget process. 
 
Gary Johnson, 299 Connorly, Lucas, Texas came forward to speak.  Mr. 
Johnson has lived in Lucas since June 2000.  For the longest time, Mr. 
Johnson was unaware that he did not live in the city.  Mr. Johnson serves as a 
Lucas Volunteer Fire Rescue member.  There have been many positive 
changes over the past several years.  Mr, Johnson asks that Council consider 
providing service to the Commons of Camden and Seis Lagos so that his 
family would be provided with the outstanding service offered by Lucas Fire 
Rescue. 
 
The Seis Lagos contract is only for fire and first responder medical and does 
not include EMS.  If the City does serve as first responder to the calls in Seis 
Lagos, however if the City does not transport, the call cannot be billed. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 11 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher states the map has Lucas being the regional 
solution.  Councilmember Fisher is not in favor of providing any services to 
the Inspiration Utility District, some 1400-2400 homes. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele agreed.  The contract with Seis Lagos and 
Brockdale must be for both fire and EMS services. 

 
Council agreed that the City’s fire district would include Brockdale, 
Commons of Camden, Seis Lagos, and the ETJ. 
 
b) Consider the applicability of creating a Department of Public Safety. 
 
There have been several fact finding visits to other cities, Highland Park and 
Fate were two of the cities visited.  Staff would like to propose creating a 
Public Safety Concept.  This would take at least one year to put together a 
solid plan. 
 
The ambulance service is becoming very busy in the city.  Citizens are finding 
that the response time is less so they are calling 911 rather than using personal 
vehicles to transport family members to the hospital. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele is not in favor of creating a Department of 
Public Safety at this time.  The City is not going to be that big and the need 
would just add extra burden to the City, which is not justified. 
 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence agreed with Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele. 
 
Councilmember Jim Olk stated that Council might have eliminated the need 
for this with the establishing the fire district.  With less density brings less 
crime. 
 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher feels that now is not the time.  When the time 
comes, Councilmember Fisher would like some sort of hybrid program.  
Council needs to see what the EMS is going to cost before adding a police 
department. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 12 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

Mayor Rebecca Mark stated that on a daily basis she witnesses a lot of unsafe 
driving.  Having one deputy, five days a week is not going to service us long 
term with all the growth the city is experiencing.  Council needs to continue to 
monitor and evaluate this for the future so that the City is prepared to make an 
informed decision. 
 
Councilmember Steve Duke thanked the City Manager and Fire Chief for 
bringing this to Council for discussion. 
 
c) Consider the current staffing levels including both full-time and volunteer. 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke believes that the number of paid staff per shift is 
inadequate.  City Manager Clarke reviewed the Local Fire Department 
Statistics for FY 2013. 
 
There have been 52 calls which the ambulance has responded since the 
beginning of these services being offered.  Every call varies but the standard is 
the ambulance is dispatched then a truck a few minutes behind. The truck is 
cancelled prior to arriving at the scene should it be determined that the call 
can be taken care of by the two personnel in the ambulance. 
 
The City is short of staff, we are losing volunteers, and the call volume has 
increased dramatically.  There is not a lot of coverage during the day with the 
volunteers.  When individuals take vacations, there will be some overtime 
necessary to provide the coverage. 
 
A lot of departments are going with paid part-time positions.  Positions that 
work less than 19 hours per week which do not have benefits.  Perhaps a full 
time person that is considered a floater could be a short time solution. 
 
Due to the lateness of the hour, Council will consider this and the remainder 
of the items during the budget workshops. 
 
d) Consider the apparatus, vehicles and major equipment assessment and 

replacement schedule. 
e) Consider future facilities. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 13 of 13 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Minutes 
June 5, 2014 

f) Consider dispatch and communications. 
g) Consider the current mutual aid agreements and/or service agreements: 

 Agreement for the Provision of Firefighting and Fire Protection 
Services with Collin County effective October 2013 with automatic 
renewal for successive one year terms with budgeted revenue of 
$36,000 for fiscal year 13/14. 

 Interjurisdictional Mutual Aid Agreement effective on the date of 
adoption (August 2008) and automatically renews for one year terms. 

 Interlocal Automatic Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town of 
Fairview and the City of Parker executed September 2008 and 
automatically renews for one year terms. 

 Memorandum of Understanding Agreement for Assistance Between 
Lucas and Murphy Fire Departments dated February 1, 2014 

 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Seis Lagos Utility District 
executed in November 2009 and automatically renews for one year 
terms with budgeted revenue of $126,514 for fiscal year 13/14. 

10) Adjournment. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:47 p.m. Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council on June 
19, 2014. 

____________________________ 
Rebecca Mark 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



Item No: 03b 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consent and approve Resolution # R-2014-06-00422  a resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, hereinafter referred to as 
“Applicant,” designating certain officials as being responsible for, acting for, and on 
behalf of the “Applicant” in dealing with Collin County, hereinafter referred to as 
“Grantor,” for the purpose of participating in the Collin County Parks and Open 
Space Project Funding Assistance Program, hereinafter referred to as the “Program”; 
certifying that the “Applicant” is eligible to receive program assistance; certifying 
that the “Applicant” matching share is readily available; and dedicating the proposed 
site for permanent public park and open space uses; and providing for an effective 
date. 
 

Background Information  
 
Collin County Parks awards grants to municipalities for parks.  
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Copy of Resolution 
2. Copy of Parks Grant Application 

 

Budget/Financial Impact  
 
Cost to the general fund $64,000. 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 

Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No: 03b 

Recommendation  

 
Approve Staff to move forward and apply for a grant to add a trailhead on East 
Winningkof Road adjacent to the existing water tower site.  
 

Motion  
 

I make a Motion to approve/deny Resolution # R-2014-06-00422  a 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, 
hereinafter referred to as “Applicant,” designating certain officials as being 
responsible for, acting for, and on behalf of the “Applicant” in dealing with Collin 
County, hereinafter referred to as “Grantor,” for the purpose of participating in the 
Collin County Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Program”; certifying that the “Applicant” is eligible 
to receive program assistance; certifying that the “Applicant” matching share is 
readily available; and dedicating the proposed site for permanent public park and 
open space uses; and providing for an effective date. 
 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 2 
Resolution # R-2014-06-00422 Collin County Parks & Open Space Grant 
Approved May 5, 2011 

RESOLUTION # 2014-06-00422 
[PARKS GRANT] 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, HEREINAFTER 

REFERRED TO AS “APPLICANT,” DESIGNATING CERTAIN 

OFFICIALS AS BEING RESPONSIBLE FOR, ACTING FOR, 

AND ON BEHALF OF THE “APPLICANT” IN DEALING 

WITH COLLIN COUNTY, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO 

AS “GRANTOR,” FOR THE PURPOSE OF PARTICIPATING 

IN THE COLLIN COUNTY PARKS AND OPEN SPACE 

PROJECT FUNDING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, 

HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “PROGRAM”; 

CERTIFYING THAT THE “APPLICANT” IS ELIGIBLE TO 

RECEIVE PROGRAM ASSISTANCE; CERTIFYING THAT 

THE “APPLICANT” MATCHING SHARE IS READILY 

AVAILABLE; AND DEDICATING THE PROPOSED SITE 

FOR PERMANENT PUBLIC PARK AND OPEN SPACE USES; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the “Applicant” is fully eligible to receive assistance under the 
“Program”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the “Applicant” is desirous of authorizing an official to represent and 
act for the “Applicant” in dealing with the “Grantor” concerning the “Program.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.   The “Applicant” hereby certifies that it is eligible to receive 
assistance under the “Program.” 
 
SECTION 2.  The “Applicant” hereby certifies that the matching share for 
this application is readily available at this time. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 2 
Resolution # R-2014-06-00422 Collin County Parks & Open Space Grant 
Approved June 19, 2014 

SECTION 3.    The “Applicant” hereby authorizes and directs its City Manager to 
act for the “Applicant” in dealing with the “Grantor” for the purpose of the 
“Program,” and Joni Clarke is hereby officially designated as the representative in 
this regard. 
 
SECTION 4.  The “Applicant” hereby specifically authorizes the official to 
make application to the “Grantor” concerning park site improvements. 
 
SECTION 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately from and 
after its passage. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS THE 19TH DAY 
OF JUNE, 2014. 
 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
 
          

Rebecca Mark  
MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
             

Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
CITY SECRETARY 





























Item No. 03c 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Jim Kitchen, Fire Chief 
 

Agenda Item:  
 

Consent and approve an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas 
and Lovejoy Independent School District concerning Emergency 
Medical Services being provided by the City of Lucas at all Lovejoy 
Independent School District home games (Varsity, Junior Varsity and 
Middle School). 
 

Background Information:  
 
In the past The Lovejoy Independent School District (ISD) contracted 
with two Lucas Fire Rescue volunteers to standby at every football 
game.  The ISD treated the volunteers as contractors.  With the addition 
of paid firefighters and EMS services, this Interlocal Agreement will 
allow the city to comply with state and federal FSLA laws 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and Lovejoy 
Independent School District concerning Emergency Medical 
Services. 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The fire department budget will need to be increased by the amount of 
games that are scheduled this year to fund two members at each game.  
It will be offset by the payment from the ISD.  This amount will be 
determined at a later date. It should be approximately $3,500.00 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No. 03c 

 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 

Motion:  
 
Approve with Consent Agenda Motion. 



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 1 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR  
COUNTY OF COLLIN  § EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
  
 
 This Interlocal Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the City of Lucas, 
Texas (“City") and the Lovejoy Independent School District (“LISD”), (each a “Party” and 
collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their duly authorized representatives.  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is being entered into pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 791.001, et seq. (the "Act"); and  

 
WHEREAS, City and LISD are units of local governments engaged in the provision of 

governmental functions and services to their citizens as defined by Section 791.003 of the Act; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, these functions and services serve the public health, safety and welfare, 

promote efficiency and effectiveness of local government and are of mutual concern to the 
parties; and 

 
WHEREAS, LISD desires to have Emergency Medical Services provided by the City at 

all Lovejoy Independent School District home football games (varsity, junior varsity and middle 
school); and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits contained 

herein, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
Article I  

Term 
 
The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one year commencing on the last date 

of execution hereof (the "Effective Date") and shall thereafter automatically continue for 
successive terms of one (1) year each, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.  
 

Article II 
Scope of Work 

 
 2.1 City shall provide one on-site ambulance with two qualified personnel at LISD 
home football games (varsity, junior varsity and middle school) at either Lovejoy High School 
field, 2350 Estates Parkway, or Willow Springs Middle School, 1101 West Lucas Road.   
 
 2.2 On-site ambulance service will remain dedicated to the LISD event, and will not 
be available for other routine EMS calls. If an on-site injury occurs at the event requiring 



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 2 

ambulance transport services, another ambulance and crew will be immediately routed to the 
event to transport the patient or replace the ambulance and crew that transported the patient. 
 

2.3 The coordination of the games requiring City’s services shall be assigned to the 
City Manager, or his/her designee; and the LISD Superintendent, or his/her designee.  LISD shall 
notify and provide the City with the game schedule(s) thirty (30) days prior to the first game.  
LISD shall notify the City of any modifications to the game schedule, including date, time or 
location, not later than 72 hours in advance.  

 
Article III 

Compensation 
 

3.1 LISD shall compensate the City in the amount of $54.00 per hour for two (2) 
emergency medical technicians and/or paramedics and an ambulance for each LISD home 
football game (varsity, junior varsity and middle school).  City shall be compensated in the 
amount of $27.00 per hour for each additional emergency medical technician and/or paramedic. 

 
 3.2 City shall bill and collect all allowable fees and costs if it is necessary to provide a 
medical transport.  
 
 3.3 In the unlikely condition of certain extreme, catastrophic, or immediate life-
threatening emergencies requiring the City to utilize the ambulance and crew dedicated to the 
LISD event or a lapse of on-site coverage occurs, all fees associated with this Agreement for the 
event will be waived. 

 
Article IV 

Termination 
 

 4.1 This Agreement may be terminated by the City in the event the LISD breaches 
any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement and, such breach is not cured within thirty (30) 
days after written notice thereof from City to the LISD, provided, however, that in the event the 
breach cannot be cured through diligent effort within such thirty (30) day period and the LISD 
commences action to cure such breach within such thirty (30) day period and diligently pursues 
such action and the City shall extend the period to cure for an additional thirty (30) days.  
 
 4.2 City or LISD may cancel this Agreement for any reason and at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail to the other Party to this Agreement.  Both the 
City and LISD agree that upon the termination of this Agreement that neither Party shall have 
any liability whatsoever to the other Party.  
 

Article V 
Miscellaneous 

 
 5.1 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 3 

successors, and assigns. This Agreement may not be assigned without the written consent of the 
other Party. 
 
 5.2 Limitation on Liability. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the 
terms hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
among the Parties. It is understood and agreed among the Parties that each Party, in satisfying the 
conditions of this Agreement, has acted independently, and each Party assumes no 
responsibilities or liabilities to third Parties in connection with these actions.  
 
 5.3 Authorization. Each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority to grant 
all rights and assume all obligations that is granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 5.4 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address set forth below or on the day 
actually received when sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered. 
  

If intended for City:    With copy to: 
City of Lucas, Texas    Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr.  
Attn: Joni Clarke, City Manager  Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
665 Country Club Road   1800 Ross Tower 

 Lucas, Texas 75002    500 N. Akard 
       Dallas, Texas 75002 
 
 If intended for LISD:    With copy to: 
 Lovejoy Independent School District  Robert H. Roeder 
 Attn:  Ted Moore, Superintendent  Abernathy, Roeder, Boyd & Joplin, P.C. 
 259 Country Club Road   1700 Redbud Blvd., #300 
 Allen, Texas 75002    McKinney, Texas 75069 
 
 5.5 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the complete agreement of the 
Parties hereto, superseding all oral or written, previous and contemporary agreements between 
the Parties and relating to the matters in this Agreement, and except as otherwise provided herein 
cannot be modified without written agreement of the Parties to be attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement.  
 
 5.6  Governing Law.  The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms and 
provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the Parties, shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Texas; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in District Court of 
Collin County, Texas. The Parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction 
of said court. 
 
 5.7  Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 
of the Parties.  

 
 5.8 Force Majeure.  No Party will be liable for any default or delay in the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement if and to the extent such default or delay is 



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 4 

caused, directly or indirectly, by fire, flood, earthquake, elements of nature or acts of God, riots, 
civil disorders, acts of terrorism or any similar cause beyond the reasonable control of such 
party, provided that the non-performing party is without fault in causing such default or delay.  
The non-performing Party agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to recommence 
performance as soon as possible.   
 
 5.9 Legal Construction.  In the event anyone or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable.  
 
 5.10 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein.  
 
 5.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but any of the counterparts shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 
 
 5.12 Exhibits.  Any exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference for 
all purposes wherever reference is made to the same.  
 
 5.13  Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the Parties set forth in this Agreement shall survive termination.  
 
 5.14  Compliance with Laws.  The Parties shall fully comply with all local, state and 
federal laws, including all codes, ordinances and regulations applicable to this Agreement and 
the work to be done thereunder, which exist or which may be enacted later by governmental 
bodies having jurisdiction or authority for such enactment.  
 
 5.15  Severability. In the event any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, phrase or 
word herein is held invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, the balance of this Agreement shall be 
enforceable and shall be enforced as if the Parties intended at all times to delete said invalid 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, phrase or word.  
 

(signature page to follow) 
 
 



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 5 

 EXECUTED on this ____ day of __________________________, 2014. 
 
       City of Lucas, Texas 

 
 

 By: ______________________________ 
 Rebecca Mark, Mayor 

 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:   

________________________________ 
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
 (06-04-14/66376) 
   

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF COLLIN  § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
__________________, 2014, by Rebecca Mark, Mayor of the City of Lucas, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the State of Texas, in such capacity on behalf of such 
municipal corporation. 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public, State of Texas 

 
My Commission Expires 
____________________________________ 

 
 
  



CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES – PAGE 6 

 EXECUTED on this ____ day of __________________________, 2014. 
 
       Lovejoy Independent School District 

 
 
 By: ______________________________ 
  Ted Moore, Superintendent 

 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
__________________, 2014, by Ted Moore, Superintendent of Lovejoy Independent School 
District, on behalf of said independent school district. 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public, State of Texas 

 
My Commission Expires 
____________________________________ 



Item No. 03d 
03e 

 
 

 
Name & Title of Requestor: Cheryl Meehan, HR Manager 
 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Consent and approve the Texas Municipal League Multistate Intergovernmental 
Employee Benefits Pool: 
 

a. Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and the Texas Municipal 
League Multistate Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool for a term of 
October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 authorizing the City of Lucas 
to obtain health benefits and other related services through this agency; and 

b. COBRA Continuation of Coverage Administrative Agreement between the 
City of Lucas and the Texas Municipal League Multistate Intergovernmental 
Employee Benefits Pool effective on October 1, 2014 to assist the City of 
Lucas in complying with the requirements of continuation of coverage as 
required by Federal law; and 

 
authorize the City Manager to execute said agreements. 
 
Background Information:   
 
TML has started offering services to other governmental agencies in Oklahoma, 
Arkansas and Louisiana to increase the size of the pool to negotiate better pricing 
for the employers that they represent. Revised agreements have become necessary 
because of the new Trust Agreement establishing the TML Multistate 
Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool which was previously known as the 
TML Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool.  TML Multistate 
Intergovernmental Employee Benefits Pool requests these agreements be 
completed and returned to their offices by June 30, 2014. 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014  
 



Item No. 03d 
03e 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   
 

1. Interlocal Agreement with TML for Employee Health Insurance 
Coverage. 

2. COBRA Continuation of Coverage Administrative Agreement. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
TML rerates will impact the budget, but the action of the annual renewal of the 
agreements has no official impact on the budget. 
 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the presented agreements. 
 

Motion:  
 
Approve with consent agenda Motion. 































Item No. 04 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joe Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Update of the Stormwater program. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Stormwater Training Presentation. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 
Motion:  
 
No action necessary. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



04/30/2014

1

STORMWATER
POLLUTION

PREVENTION/GOOD
HOUSEKEEPING
FOR MUNICIPAL 

OPERATIONS

Target Audience

Buildings and grounds maintenance personnel
Parks superintendents
Building and plumbing inspectors
Sewer district managers and employees
School maintenance staff
Certified pesticide applicators
Health inspectors



04/30/2014

2

Goal: Train municipal officials to 
perform their maintenance (and 
other) operations so that the impact 
of stormwater runoff is minimized

Sign in/out Procedures for training 
credits

Regulatory
Overview



04/30/2014

3

Topics

Water Quality concerns with 
Stormwater

Traditional TPDES permit program

Stormwater SPDES permits
Phase I and Phase II 

WHY REGULATE 
STORMWATER ?



04/30/2014

4

Water Quality Challenges

Fish consumption advisories
Acid lakes
Shellfish waters closed 
Impaired benthic communities
Loss of aquatic habitat 
Excessive weed growth
Beach closings

Point vs. Nonpoint Sources

91.3%

8.7%

NPS PS



04/30/2014

5

Stormwater: A Priority 
Based on Water Quality

The state’s list of 
impaired waters 
identifies stormwater 
runoff as the primary 
source of pollutants 
for:
• 95% of the shellfish 

impacted waters
• 51% of the waters 

requiring a restoration 
plan

Stormwater 63.3%

Agriculture 21.3%

Onsite  11.2%

Other 4.3%

Nonpoint Sources of Pollution *

•Excluding Atmospheric Deposition, Contaminated Sediments
• and Migratory Species

Stormwater runoff is a natural part of the 
hydrologic cycle … but as land use changes, 
runoff can increase by 45%, resulting in erosion, 
pollutant transport, sedimentation, loss of 
aquatic habitat, and other damages.

Precipitation

Recharge

Runoff

Evaporation
Transpiration

40%

10%

50%

Precipitation

Recharge

Runoff

Evaporation
Transpiration

25%

55%

20%

Undeveloped Conditions Highly Developed Conditions



04/30/2014

6

Typical Stormwater Runoff 
Pollutants

Suspended solids/sediments
Nutrients (nitrogen & 
phosphorus)
Metals (copper, zinc and lead)
Oil & greases 
Bacteria
Pesticides & herbicides
Temperature

Property Damage

Sedimentation

Rebuilding of Roads

Erosion

Damage to Aquatic Habitats

Contamination of Drinking 
Water

The U.S. loses 600 million tons of sediment 
per year. That is enough to cover more than 
400 football fields per day to a depth of 1 foot.



04/30/2014

7

Pollutant Transport

Fertilizers and 
Pesticides

Automotive By-
Products

REGULATORY HISTORY
1972 Clean Water Act
• Required the regulation of Point Source 

discharges of pollutants to the “Waters of the 
U.S.”

NPDES- National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System
TPDES- State Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System

• Texas is a TPDES Delegated State.
1987 Amendments to the Clean Water Act
• Required a phased approach to regulating 

stormwater discharges



04/30/2014

8

TPDES Permits

1972 - Wastewater Treatment Plants
End of pipe treatment

1993 - Stormwater Permits
Pollution Prevention

Why Use General Permits?

Large number of sites / facilities

Similarities in discharge 
characteristics
and control methods



04/30/2014

9

General TPDES Permits

Commercial / Sanitary  to 
Groundwater

less than 10,000 gpd
Concentrated Animal Feeding 

Operations  (CAFO)
Stormwater

Industrial
Construction
Munic. Separate Storm Sewer    

Systems  (MS4)

STORMWATER PHASE I

Became effective in 1992
11 Types of Industrial Activities
• Including Construction Activities > 5 

acres

Medium and Large Municipalities 
(MS4)
• Populations > 100,000 (Medium)
• Populations > 250,000 (Large) 



04/30/2014

10

Industrial Stormwater 
TPDES Permit

11 Categories of Facilities
• Descriptive

• Junkyards
• Landfills
• WWTP sites
• Construction Activity

• SIC codes

STORMWATER SPDES 
GENERAL PERMITS

Became effective in 1993

Industrial Activity (GP-98-03)
• Regulates 10 Industrial categories
• Issued 1993, renewed 1998
Construction Activity (GP-93-06)
• Regulates Construction activity with site 

disturbances of  5  or more acres
• Issued 1993, renewed 2003



04/30/2014

11

Clean Water Act 
Two Phase Permitting

for Stormwater SPDES Permits

Phase I
• Qualifying Industries
• Construction Activities 

over 5 acres
• Medium and Large 

Municipalities

Phase II added

• One to five acre 
construction activities

• Small Municipalities

STORMWATER PHASE II
Became effective January 2003
Construction Activities > 1 acre
Small Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer System (MS4’s)
• Populations < 100,000 
Regulated Small MS4’s
• Located in an “Urbanized Area”

Central place and adjacent area with a 
minimum pop of 50,000 and a density of 
1000 per sq mi.



04/30/2014

12

What is an MS4?
MS4 = Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System

“A (designated) conveyance or system of 
conveyances owned by a State, City, Town, 
Village, or other public entity that discharges to 
the Waters of the United States and is:

–designed or used to collect or convey stormwater 
(includes gutters, pipes, ditches)

–not a combined sewer

REGULATED MS4’S

357 Municipal Governments
• Cities, Towns, Villages
Others
• DOT, Thruway, County Highway Dept.
• State Agencies
• Post Offices, Water and Sewer Districts, 

Fire Districts
39  Municipalities in DEC Region 9



04/30/2014

13

Deadline

March 10, 2008: Phase II fully 
implemented
• Regulated MS4s must have 6 point 

programs operational

Current  Priorities
Construction Stormwater TPDES



04/30/2014

14

Website

MS4 and Construction ‘Tool boxes’
• Permits
• Technical Standards
• Guidance documents
• FAQs
• Interactive map (NOI)

NOI for Coverage Under 
the TPDES General 

Permit For Stormwater 
Discharge from Small 

Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems



04/30/2014

15

Section A

Small MS4 Owner/Operator 
Information

Section B

Small MS4 Location ID



04/30/2014

16

Section C

ID of Management Practices
• 1) Public Education and Outreach
• 2) Public involvement and Participation 
• 3) Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
• 4) Construction Site Runoff Control
• 5) Post Construction Site Runoff Control
• 6) Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping For 

Municipal Operations

NOI for Coverage Under 
the TPDES General 

Permit For Stormwater 
Discharge from Small 

Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems



04/30/2014

17

Section A

Small MS4 Owner/Operator 
Information

Section B

Small MS4 Location ID



04/30/2014

18

Section C

ID of Management Practices
• 1) Public Education and Outreach
• 2) Public involvement and Participation 
• 3) Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
• 4) Construction Site Runoff Control
• 5) Post Construction Site Runoff Control
• 6) Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping For 

Municipal Operations

ID of Management Practices

1) Public Education and Outreach On 
Stormwater Impacts
• Plan and conduct an ongoing public 

education and outreach program
General public
Small business owners
Construction operators



04/30/2014

19

ID of Management Practices

2) Public Participation and 
Involvement
• Public notice and access to information
• Public presentation and comments on 

annual Stormwater Management Plan 
and annual reports

• Public innvolvement/participation 
program

• Contact person

ID of Management Practices

3) Illicit Discharge Detection & 
Elimination
• Develop a program to detect and 

eliminate illicit discharges
• Map outfalls
• Adopt an ordinance prohibiting illicit 

discharges
• Inform public, employees, businesses of 

hazards of illicit discharges



04/30/2014

20

ID of Management Practices

4) Construction Site Runoff Control
• Erosion & Sediment control through 

ordinance/ regulatory mechanism
• Public comment on construction plans
• Construction site plan review, 

inspections and enforcement
• Construction site waste management
• Education and training

ID of Management Practices

5) Post-Construction Site Runoff 
Control
• Assess existing conditions to reduce 

pollutant discharges
• Regulate post construction runoff 

through an ordinance/ regulatory 
mechanism

• Develop inspection and maintenance 
program



04/30/2014

21

ID of Management Practices

6) Pollution Prevention/Good 
Housekeeping for Municipal 
Operations
• Program Requirements
• Management Practices

Section D
ID of Measurable Goals



04/30/2014

22

Section E

Cooperating MS4’s
• 39 Traditional Entities –Municipalities
• 2 Non Traditional Entities - Authorities

Section F

Certification



04/30/2014

23

Pollution Prevention/Good 
Housekeeping for Municipal 

Operations

Program Requirements
• Prevent discharge of pollutants from 

municipal operations
• Follow DEC NPS Management Practices 

Catalogue
• Conduct employee pollution prevention 

training

Pollution Prevention/Good 
Housekeeping For Municipal 

Operations
Management Practices

• LANDSCAPING AND LAWN CARE
• SPILL RESPONSE AND PREVENTION
• PEST CONTROL
• PET WASTE COLLECTION
• SEPTIC SYSTEM MANAGEMENT
• VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
• VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT WASHING
• ROADWAY AND BRIDGE MAINTENANCE
• ALTERNATIVE DISCHARGE OPTIONS FOR 

CHLORINATED WATER



04/30/2014

24

Pollution Prevention/Good 
Housekeeping For Municipal 

Operations
Management Practices (cont’d.)
• HAZARDOUS AND WASTE MATERIALS 

MANAGEMENT
• OPERATIONAL BY PRODUCTS/WASTES
• CATCH BASIN AND STORM DRAIN SYSTEM 

CLEANING
• STREET CLEANING AND MAINTENANCE
• ROAD SALT STORAGE AND APPLICATION
• ROAD KILL COMPOSTING OPERATIONS
• MARINA OPERATIONS
• CONSTRUCTION AND LAND DISTURBANCE 

Stormwater Reference 
Information

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency -
(http://www.epa.gov)
New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation - http://www.dec.state.ny.us
Occupational Health and Safety Administration –
www.osha.gov
http://www.epa.gov/owow/nps/marinashdbk200
3.pdf - Shipshape Shores and Waters: A 
Handbook for Marina Operators and Recreational 
Boaters



04/30/2014

25

Glossary of Terms

Biochemical oxygen demand – Depletion of dissolved 
oxygen in water caused by decomposition of chemical or 
biologic matter.
Catch Basin – A unit that is installed to capture and retain 
debris, particulate matter, or other solid materials, but 
allows stormwater to “flow through” to its discharge 
location
Drip Irrigation –irrigation via a perforated device (i.e. hose) 
that allows for a slow watering method with reduced 
evaporation and runoff losses
Hydraulic – Referring to water
(IPM) Integrated Pesticide Management – An 
environmentally sensitive approach to pest management 
(not elimination) that uses the least toxic control method –
a sustainable approach to managing pests by combining 
biological, cultural, physical, and chemical tools.

Glossary of Terms
Loading – Term used in conjunction with sediment and hydraulic
to describe excessive amounts (of the term that is described)
Naturescaping – An alternative landscaping technique that 
incorporates native plants and creates beneficial wildlife habitat –
also conserves water and energy, reduces soil/water pollution.
Oil/Water Separator – A unit that is installed “in line” to a 
wastewater discharge pipe which is devised to capture petroleum 
derived materials that float on water
Pesticides – Products that are toxic and are used to kill pests - can 
be classified as insecticides, herbicides, rodenticides, biocides, 
aquacides.
POTW – Publicly Owned Treatment Works - - a municipal 
wastewater treatment plant 
Pathogen- a disease carrying agent
Scupper – an opening (in a bridge deck) to allow water drainage –
it does not capture debris,  particulate matter, or other solid 
materials



04/30/2014

26

Glossary of Terms

Sediment - Small particles of matter that settle to the 
bottom of a body of water
Silt – Material consisting of mineral soil particles ranging in 
diameter from 0.02 millimeters to 0.002 millimeters
Stormwater - rainwater runoff or snow melt waters – these 
waters can interact with different types of materials, 
transporting contaminants to surface waters (i.e. streams, 
creeks, rivers)
Toxicity –The relative degree of being poisonous
Windrow- a row of compost
Xeriscaping – An alternative landscaping technique that 
conserves water and protects the environment.
Zero input, low input (lawns) - have minimal need for care 
(i.e. addition of fertilizers/pesticides, water, etc.)

POLLUTION PREVENTION

Good Housekeeping Practices for 
Municipal Operations



04/30/2014

27

Landscaping And Lawn Care

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Nutrients (nitrogen, phosphorous) 
from fertilizer runoff can cause 
excessive aquatic plant growth



04/30/2014

28

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Limit purchase of lawn care products 
Store lawn care products properly
Use slow-release, organic fertilizers
Train employees – proper application



04/30/2014

29

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Develop zero input/low input lawns
Alternative landscape techniques –
naturescaping, xeriscaping
Plant trees away from underground 
utilities
Use drip irrigation techniques

Inspection Procedures

Routinely monitor lawns to ID 
problems
Identify nutrient and water needs of 
plants
Test soils



04/30/2014

30

Maintenance Procedures

Minimize or eliminate fertilizer 
application
Leave grass clippings on lawn, or 
mulch into lawn
Limit watering - supplement rainfall 
(1 inch/week)
Mow with sharpened blades set high 
– remove top 1/3 of leaves
Water plants in the early morning

Spill Response and Prevention



04/30/2014

31

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Vehicle and equipment maintenance 
products (fuel, antifreeze, oils)
Rock Salt
Chemicals (fertilizers, pesticides)

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity
Biochemical oxygen demand



04/30/2014

32

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Properly store materials (closed, 
labeled containers – inside, if 
possible, or covered if outside)
Use secondary containment systems
Obtain spill recovery materials –
reusable sponge mops, speedi-dry, 
absorbent pads)

Inspection Procedures

Secondary containment systems, 
oil/water separators
Containers (for leaks)
Outside storage - areas near storm 
receivers and outlets
Inside storage - floor drains (spills)



04/30/2014

33

Maintenance Procedures

Pump out oil water separators
Protect drains with oil absorbent 
materials, curbing, covers
Clean out receivers, clean up spills
Remove spilled salt from salt loading 
area

Pest Control



04/30/2014

34

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Runoff from pesticides can harm 
aquatic life, can contaminate water

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity to aquatic plants and 
animals



04/30/2014

35

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Limit purchases of pesticides
Store and apply pesticides properly
Minimize or eliminate pesticide 
application, use less toxic materials
Texas certification for pesticide 
application

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Develop zero input/low input lawns
Eliminate food, water, and shelter for 
pests
Adopt integrated pest management 
techniques
Adopt alternatives to pesticides -
(physical, mechanical, biological) 



04/30/2014

36

Inspection Procedures

Identify acceptable levels of pests –
take action when necessary
Inspect pesticide inventory - properly 
dispose out-of-date materials

Maintenance Procedures

Inspect pest traps regularly –
remove dead pests
Block or eliminate access to buildings 
and structures
Remove pests by hand



04/30/2014

37

Pet Waste Collection

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Waste from municipal animal 
shelters, municipal parks



04/30/2014

38

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand
Solids loading

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

House all animals in an enclosed, 
roofed structure
ID/utilize “permitted” waste disposal 
facilities for animal wastes
Post signage (“Clean Up after Your 
Pets”) in Parks



04/30/2014

39

Inspection Procedures

Inspect shelter regularly for 
necessary cleanup and removal of 
wastes

Maintenance Procedures

Remove spilled food and animal 
wastes on a regular basis



04/30/2014

40

Septic System Management

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Ponding of improperly treated 
wastewaters
Excessive amounts of disinfectant in 
wastewater discharge (sand filter 
systems) detrimentally affects 
aquatic life  



04/30/2014

41

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand
Toxicity

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Divert runoff away from septic 
system
Divert groundwater (sump pump) 
away from system
Locate swimming pools away from 
system



04/30/2014

42

Identify Solutions (BMP’s

Prevent growth of woody plants
Prevent hydraulic loading
Minimize water usage with flow 
restrictors

Inspection Procedures

Look For Physical Evidence of 
Problems:
• “Back up” of wastewater in sewer lines
• Sewage odors
• Leach field/sand filter – wetness or 

ponding on surface
• Overflow of wastes from system 

components (distribution box)
• Heavy vegetation growth on system



04/30/2014

43

Maintenance Procedures

Pump out the septic tank as needed 
– Collin County Development 
Services recommends once/year
Mow surface vegetation regularly
Prevent heavy equipment from 
driving on top of system components

Advisory

Obtain site plan or sketch of system 
and retain for reference



04/30/2014

44

Vehicle and Equipment 
Maintenance

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Metals and hydrocarbons in materials 
such as batteries, petroleum 
products, anti-freeze, parts cleaning 
solvents



04/30/2014

45

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity
Biochemical oxygen demand

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Conduct maintenance work indoors
Seal floor drains if possible
Single purpose use of vehicle bays
Clean up spilled materials 
immediately – use dry methods such 
as sponge mops, absorbents



04/30/2014

46

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Install pretreatment systems 
(oil/water separators)
Never leave vehicles unattended 
while refueling
If outside maintenance is necessary, 
protect against spillage 
Identify appropriate 
recycling/disposal options

Inspection Procedures

Inspect floor drain systems, oil/water 
separators
Monitor “parked” vehicles/equipment 
for leaks



04/30/2014

47

Maintenance Procedures

Maintain a clean work area – remove 
contaminants
Use non-hazardous cleaners
Repair or replace leaking containers
Use steam cleaning and pressure 
washing methods instead of solvent

Maintenance Procedures

Use capped, labeled storage 
containers for fluid storage, battery 
storage
Rinse grass from lawn care 
equipment on grassed areas



04/30/2014

48

Vehicle and Equipment Washing

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Nutrients (soaps)
Road salt components 
Hydrocarbons (petroleum products), 
metals in discharge waters



04/30/2014

49

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand
Toxicity
Hydraulic loading

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Initiate single purpose use of vehicle 
bays – drainage to sanitary sewers
Cleaning with cold water only -
(storm sewer system)
Use minimal amounts of soaps -
(sanitary sewer system)
Equip hoses with automatic shutoff 
devices and spray nozzles
Steam clean



04/30/2014

50

Inspection Procedures

Inspect floor drain systems
Inspect catch basins and oil/water 
separators

Maintenance Procedures

Map storm drain locations
No excessive amounts of detergents
Clean catch basins, oil/water 
separators



04/30/2014

51

Advisory

Connect floor drain systems to 
sanitary sewers, if possible
TEXDOT guidance information

Roadway and Bridge Maintenance



04/30/2014

52

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Road salt components
Hydrocarbons
Particulates – dry paint or abrasive 
compounds
Debris

Problem Evaluation

Particulate matter
Toxicity (paints, hydrocarbons)



04/30/2014

53

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Incorporate preventive maintenance 
and planning
Pave in dry weather only
Stage road operations and 
maintenance activity – avoid spills, 
cover catch basins, manholes
Clean up fluid leaks and spills 
immediately
Restrict the use of herbicides

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Use porous asphalt (road shoulders)
Sweep and vacuum paved roads and 
shoulders to remove debris
Maintain roadside vegetation – plant 
salt tolerant species 
Use CMA for de-icing
Clean out bridge scuppers and catch 
basins regularly



04/30/2014

54

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Direct water from bridge scuppers to 
vegetated areas
Mechanically sweep debris from 
bridge deck and structure before 
washing
Control particulate wastes from 
bridge sandblasting operations

Inspection Procedures

Inspect paving, sweeping, 
vacuuming, and maintenance 
vehicles and equipment
Inspect roads and bridges – which  
BMP’s apply to which roads and 
bridges?



04/30/2014

55

Maintenance Procedures
Clean bridge scuppers
Direct runoff water from bridges to 
vegetated areas
Install catch basins in place of bridge 
scuppers
Use tarps, booms, and vacuum 
equipment during painting or blasting 
activities
Repair leaking or defective containers 
or equipment

Alternative Discharge Options for 
Chlorinated Water 



04/30/2014

56

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Chlorinated water can injure or kill 
aquatic life – total residual chlorine 
as low as 10 micrograms/liter 
detrimentally affects survival and 
reproduction of aquatic life

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity
Hydraulic loading



04/30/2014

57

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

De-chlorinate pool water, wastewater
Use ultraviolet radiation, sodium 
hypochlorite, or osmosis to disinfect 
water and wastewater
Discharge backwash water to the 
sanitary sewer or to vegetated areas

Inspection Procedures

Check chlorine residuals prior to 
discharge
Do not discharge wastewaters to 
sanitary sewer systems during 
periods of high flows 



04/30/2014

58

Maintenance Procedures

Maintain proper levels of chlorine 
residuals
Allow disinfectant to dissipate prior 
to discharge – discharge to sanitary 
sewers during low flows

Hazardous and Waste Materials 
Management



04/30/2014

59

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Lube oils
Coatings (paints, thinners)
Anti-freeze
Cleaning agents
Fuels

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand
Toxicity
Particulate loading



04/30/2014

60

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Store materials in closed, labeled 
containers – store on pallets, cover 
containers if outside, locate away 
from floor drains if inside
Eliminate floor drain systems
Install pretreatment system 
(oil/water separator) 
Reduce stock of materials - first in, 
first out system

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Use the least toxic material
Install and use secondary 
containment (berms, walls)
Eliminate wastes – reuse solvents
Recycle materials or ensure proper 
disposal



04/30/2014

61

Inspection Procedures

Verify that floor drains are sealed
Inspect material storage areas
Inspect and clean oil/water 
separators
Inspect stormwater discharge 
locations to ID contamination

Maintenance Procedures

Repair or replace any leaking or 
defective containers
Maintain caps and/or covers on 
containers
Maintain aisle space for inspection of 
containers



04/30/2014

62

Operational By Products and 
Wastes

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Leaching, runoff from toxic and 
biological contaminants



04/30/2014

63

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity
Biochemical oxygen demand

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Post “No Dumping” signs
Illuminate area
Erect barriers to prevent access
Identify recycling opportunities (i.e. 
paper, cardboard, metals)
ID and use land disposal 
opportunities (i.e. deer carcasses)



04/30/2014

64

Inspection Procedures

Regularly scheduled inspections
Unscheduled police patrols

Maintenance Procedures

Clean up and dispose of “illegally 
dumped” materials, trash, and debris
Cut and remove vegetation



04/30/2014

65

Catch Basin and Storm Drain 
System Cleaning

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Catch basins capture grit and debris
Storm drainage system can 
accumulate sediments
Storm ditches – if devoid of 
vegetation , can lead to silt 
deposition in receiving waters



04/30/2014

66

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity (metals, organic materials)
Biochemical oxygen demand
Sediment loading

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Increase cleaning frequency of:
• Storm drain/parking lot receivers, storm 

sewer systems
• Open ditches
• Catch basins and floor drain systems 

inside of buildings
Repair or replace receiver grates



04/30/2014

67

Inspection Procedures

Prioritize – some storm drains & 
catch basins need more frequent 
cleaning
Clean catch basin when depth of 
deposits are 1/3 (bottom to outlet)
Ditch inspections  - ID problems en 
route to job sites
Storm event – ID sedimentation
Post storm event - ID blockages

Maintenance Procedures

Catch basin and sewer pipe cleaning 
in spring (dirt, grit) and fall (leaves)
Seal floor drains where necessary
Established ditches
• Maintain proper slope
• Maintain vegetation - do not remove
• Remove obstacles and debris
• Excavation/ditch scraping – install 

sediment traps, reseed ditch



04/30/2014

68

Maintenance Procedures

New ditch installations – need to 
capture particulate matter
Proper disposal of debris

Street Cleaning and Maintenance



04/30/2014

69

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Trash, grit, and debris
Sediment and toxic/biological 
pollutants
Road repair materials are potential 
contaminants

Problem Evaluation

Particulate matter
Biochemical oxygen demand
Toxicity



04/30/2014

70

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Street sweeping or vacuuming at 
regular intervals or “as needed”
Paving in dry weather only
Consider shouldered roads instead of 
curbed roads
Maintain salt resistant roadside 
vegetation - to filter runoff 

Inspection Procedures

Inspect streets - plan for repairs,  
maintenance, reconstruction
Prioritize – some streets may need 
more frequent cleaning (high traffic 
flows, many trees)



04/30/2014

71

Maintenance Procedures

Spring sweeping and vacuuming (salt,grit)
Fall sweeping (leaf collection)
Dry sweep, or vacuum in dry weather
Temporary parking bans – access for 
maintenance
Maintain equipment – check for leaks, 
repair
Stage road operations and maintenance –
cover catch basins and manholes 

Road Salt Storage and Application



04/30/2014

72

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Salt
• very soluble in water, can be toxic to 

aquatic life
• can impact potable groundwater sources

Problem Evaluation

Toxicity



04/30/2014

73

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Covered facility for salt storage
Store salt on high ground elevation
Calibrate salt spreaders
Alternative de-icing materials - (calcium 
chloride, magnesium chloride)
Wetting agents minimize “bounce”
Cover, clean up salt loading areas
Unload salt deliveries directly into storage 
facility, or move inside immediately

Inspection Procedures

Inspect:
• Salt storage sheds – structural problems 
• Salt piles for proper coverage (tarps)
• Salt application equipment
• Runoff – salt stains on ground
• Excessive amounts of salt on roads



04/30/2014

74

Maintenance Procedures

Service vehicles, calibrate spreaders 
regularly – efficient salt distribution
Educate and train operators on 
hazards of over-salting to roads and 
environment
Repair salt storage shed, tarps

Road Kill Composting Operations



04/30/2014

75

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Biological contaminants can leach 
from compost pile to receiving 
waters

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand - can be 
extremely high



04/30/2014

76

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Establish compost pile/windrow on 
well drained, impervious surface with 
minimal slope 
ID proper types of materials to be  
composted
Locate compost piles 200’ from 
receiving waters or wetlands
Prevent access by vermin and 
scavengers – erect barriers

Inspection Procedures

Inspect for odors, temperature of 
compost, exposed carcasses
Use a daily log to keep records 



04/30/2014

77

Maintenance Procedures

Monitor temperatures
Sample, analyze for pathogens
Establish windrows
Prevent erosion
Recycle completely composted 
material

Marina Operations



04/30/2014

78

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Toxics – boat maintenance products
Sediments, Toxics – bottom paint 
from hull sanding 
Pathogenic bacteria – boat sewage
Sedimentation/runoff from barren 
soils

Problem Evaluation

Biochemical oxygen demand
Toxicity
Sediment loading



04/30/2014

79

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Construct and maintain pump out stations, 
fish cleaning stations
Stabilize shoreline
Designate areas for boat maintenance 
away from the water
Install vegetated buffer strips to filter 
runoff
Provide spill cleanup kits
Educate marina users (signs, posters)

Inspection Procedures

Identify areas of runoff that lack 
vegetation
Inspect:
• Fueling stations (spills)
• Maintenance areas (spills) 
• Fish cleaning stations
• Sewage pump out stations
• Trash cans



04/30/2014

80

Maintenance Procedures

Empty trash cans and pump out 
stations
Clean out fish cleaning stations
Maintain vegetated areas between 
work areas and the water
Replace spill clean-up kits

Advisory

Shipshape Shores and Waters: A 
Handbook for Marina Operators and 
Recreational Boaters



04/30/2014

81

Construction and Land Disturbance

Impacts to Stormwater and 
Receiving Waters

Sediment runoff affects fish habitat 
and reproduction
Thermal increase from shade tree 
removal – increased water temp, 
reduced dissolved oxygen content



04/30/2014

82

Problem Evaluation (BMP’s)

Particulate matter – sediment 
loading
Biochemical oxygen demand –
increases with temperature, depletes 
oxygen

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Plan properly- minimize soil exposure
Minimize soil compaction and 
impervious cover
Maximize infiltration opportunities
Install sediment control devices 
before disturbing soil
Limit grading to small areas



04/30/2014

83

Identify Solutions (BMP’s)

Stabilize site – protect against runoff
Protect against sediment flowing into 
storm drains
Maintain native vegetation, 
especially near waterways
Install sediment barriers on slopes, 
or divert stormwater away from 
construction

Inspection Procedures

Regularly scheduled inspections of 
sediment control devices and  
erosion safeguards
Inspect during storm or snow melt 
events



04/30/2014

84

Maintenance Procedures

Check and repair all erosion 
protection devices as needed



Item No: 05 

 
 

 
Requestor:  Joe Hilbourn, Development Services Director 

Stanton Foerster, Public Works Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider a professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn 
& Associates, Inc. for W Lucas Road at Lewis Lane Capacity Analysis and 
Traffic Signal Timing Evaluation at the Southview Drive and Country Club 
Road intersections with Lucas Road; and to authorize the City Manager to 
execute said agreement in the amount not to exceed $11,000.00. 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
TxDOT, Collin County, and the City of Lucas have several interlocal agreements 
for the reconstruction of W Lucas Road from Country Club Rd to Angel Parkway.  
One requirement of the agreements is that the new roadway must have an increase 
in capacity over the old roadway.  TxDOT and Collin County were hoping that we 
were going to construct a minimum of three lanes.  The City Council decided in 
January of this year to build a two-lane roadway with turn lanes.  Kimley-Horn 
will be producing a report that will hopefully show that our two-lane design has the 
same or more capacity than a three-lane roadway. 
 
The traffic signal work is to ensure maximum capacity of the exiting traffic 
signals. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Agreement for Professional Services with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  June 19, 2014 



Item No: 05 

This work is budgeted and funded in Item 21-8210-491-112  
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval as presented. 
 

Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny to approve the professional services agreement 
with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. for W Lucas Road at Lewis Lane Capacity 
Analysis and Traffic Signal Timing Evaluation at the Southview Drive and 
Country Club Road intersections with Lucas Road; and to authorize the City 
Manager to execute said agreement in the amount not to exceed $11,000.00. 





















Item No. 06 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joni Clarke, City Manager 

Stanton Foerster, Public Works Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the Microsoft Platform Licensing upgrade in the 
amount of $29,953, authorize the city manager to purchase and execute 
agreements approved to form by the city attorney for the upgrade, and 
adjust the FY 13-14 budget accordingly. 
 

Background Information:  
 
During the April 3, 2014, City Council meeting various information 
technology (IT) improvements were discussed.  The City Council 
authorized several IT changes and improvements during the midyear 
budget adjustment on the May 15, 2014, via Ordinance #2014-05-00781.  
Staff proceeded with the purchase of 30 Microsoft Active Directories and 
eliminated several active directors to bring our total license agreement to 
75.  The plan was to give staff time to evaluate Microsoft Cloud Office 365, 
the originally proposed migration upgrade, and any other possible 
solution. 
 
During the past two months, the Small Business Server (SBS) operating at 
City Hall has been reset, lost connection to the internet, and run so slowly 
causing it to be unusable. 
 
Staff met with Baxter IT representative William Baxter to discuss solution 
and possible small fixes to improve the performance of the SBS.  The goal 
was to make the SBS last until next fiscal year.  Unfortunately Baxter IT and 
staff believe we cannot wait until next October to upgrade our system. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  June 19, 2014 



Item No. 06 

The following is a modification to the data presented to the City Council in 
the April.  Staff has determined that the need to migrate the SharePoint 
was unnecessary.  Staff asked Baxter IT to focus on Active Director and 
Exchange Email migration.  After both of these are migrated, we will have 
110 licenses. 
 
The cost breakdown for the migration is as follows: 
 
Microsoft Exchange 2013 Server License ............................................ $835 
Microsoft Exchange Client Access Licenses (110 at $91.44 each)$10,058 
Microsoft Windows 2012 R2 Server License ...................................... $899 
Microsoft Active Directories (110 at $39.18 each) .......................... $4,310 
New Server ........................................................................................... $9,100 
Professional Services (50 hours at $95/hour) ................................. $4,750 
Total ..................................................................................................... $29,953 
 
Baxter IT is proposing we migrate to the Microsoft Enterprise platform 
with new software and licenses.   The move to Microsoft Enterprise, we 
need to purchase the following 
 
1) One new server, 
2) New Windows Operating systems for the Active Director and Exchange 

Email, and 
3) New user licenses for each service. 
 
The migration is estimated to require three to four weeks to complete.  
Baxter IT will be required to accomplish the migration without interfering 
with daily operations. 
 
Staff requested a report from Baxter IT comparing the benefits of Office 365 
verses and In-House solution.  Staff concurs and independently verified the 
findings detailed in report written by Baxter IT.  
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Cloud Vs In-House Migration Analysis by Baxter IT 
2. Baxter IT Estimate #82, June 9, 2014, in the amount of $29,952.20 



Item No. 06 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The cost of the new server and licenses is not included in FY 13-14.  Staff is 
requesting the $29,953 expense be added to 11-8999-452.  This expense will be 
funded by increased in the General Fund revenues in the following accounts by the 
following amounts: 
 
11-4365 New Home Permits ....................... $20,188 
11-4367 Accessary Building Permits ........... $2,000 
11-4375 Pool Permits .................................... $5,000 
11-4367 Weight Limit Permits ..................... $3,150 
Total ............................................................ $30,338 
 
If this item is approved, staff and Baxter IT will attempt to sell the SBS and the 
license.  Unfortunately, the SBS might not have much value due to its age. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff has made several patches to our current SBS to make it functional and in 
hopes it would last through next October.  We standardized Office software, 
switched from Internet Explore to Google Chrome, eliminated active directories, 
cleaned and reorganized the P-drive, and purchased more SBS licenses. 
 
Staff recommends approval as presented. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the upgrade of the Microsoft Platform Licensing 
in an amount not to exceed $29,953, authorize the city manager to purchase and 
execute agreements approved to form by the city attorney for the upgrade and 
related items, and adjust the FY 13-14 budget accordingly. 

























Estimate

Date

6/9/2014

Estimate #

82

Name / Address

City of Lucas
Liz Exum
665 Country Club Road
Lucas, Texas 75002-8999

Baxter IT Consulting Services, Inc
372 Town Place
Fairview, TX 75069
DPS Security License B17318

Description EMail Migration

Customer Signature_____________________________________

Phone # (972) 886-4214
Fax # (972) 886-4203

wbaxter@baxterit.com

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

Microsoft Exchange 2013 Server License 1 835.00 835.00
Microsoft Exchange Add-On User CAL's 110 91.44 10,058.40
Microsoft Windows 2012 R2 Server License For New Host
Server (2 Free VM Licenses)

1 899.00 899.00

Microsoft Active Directory (Windows 2012 R2) User Client
Access Licenses

110 39.18 4,309.80

New Server to Replace Small Business Server and host City
Virtual Machines: Dual Quad Core Processors, 96GB
Memory, LSI RAID Controller, 2U. (Reduces Server footprint
by 1)

1 9,100.00 9,100.00

Labor Costs to migrate Email and  Active Directory to new
Server and Setup New Host Server, transfer Existing VM's
to New Server. Laserficche, VPN, HR, Incode.

50 95.00 4,750.00

$29,952.20



Item No. 07 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider the award of a bid and enter into an agreement for the Central 
Fire Station Addition Project and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract. 
 

Background Information :  
 
The City of Lucas Central Fire Station Addition Project was sent out for bid. The 
City received 6 proposals from 6 qualified contractors and the project came in over 
budget. Staff met to discuss alternatives in an effort to reduce cost and come up with 
recommendations to be presented to the City Council.  The three alternatives for 
consideration include: 
 

1. Accept the low bid with addendum one removing the rear parking, for a total 
budget of $2,962,000  

2. Accept the low bid with addendum one removing the rear parking and cutting, 
landscape, flagpoles, cut air balance by $5,000, cut testing materials by 
$6,000, reducing A/E reimbursable by $7,000 and cutting the furniture budget 
by $20,000 For a total budget of $2,900,000. 

3. Do not accept a bid, go to redesign and phase the project. 
 

The low bid for the project with addendum one (removing the rear parking) was in 
the amount of $2,294,450 made by Speed Fab Crete.  Their references were 
excellent, including a reference by the Lucas Fire Rescue for their construction of 
the existing facilities. 
  
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Copy of Staff rankings 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 
 



Item No. 07 

2. References for Speed Fab Crete 
 
Note:  Copies of the proposals are available for review in the Development 
Services Office. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact :  
 
Staff is still negotiating ways to reduce cost and will be bringing the results of these 
conversations forward at the June 19th City Council meeting. 
 
If the City Council approves the staff recommendation to award the bid to Speed 
Fab Crete in the amount of $2,294,450 (which brings the total budget to $2,900,000 
and is $100,000 over the original budget of $2,800,000), staff will bring back the 
necessary budget amendment if we are unsuccessful in reducing cost. 
 
Recommendation :   
 
Staff recommended awarding the bid to Speed Fab Crete.  
 

Motion :   
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny Alternative # 2 awarding the bid and enter into 
an agreement for the Central Fire Station Addition Project and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the contract for the addition of 9,300 +/- square feet and renovations to 
the existing fire station, in an amount not to exceed the low bid for the project with 
addendum one (removing the rear parking) was in the amount of $2,294,450 made 
by Speed Fab Crete. 
 
 



Lucas Central Fire Station Expansion-Contractor Scores 06/09/2014 

Craig Zale 

  2,415,450 2,899,976 2,650,000 2,377,777 2,643,000 2,437,777 

  
FAB Tillage Mega P Tegrity 

Modern 
Contractors 

JC 
Commercial 

A. 1 5 4 2 4 3 

B. 1 2 2 5 1 2 

C. 1 2 2 5 1 2 

D. 1 2 2 4 1 3 

E. 1 3 2 4 1 3 

F. 1 2 2 4 1 2 

G. 1 2 2 3 1 2 

H. 1 1 1 3 1 2 

I. 1 5 1 5 1 1 

Total 9 24 18 35 12 20 
 



Lucas Central Fire Station Expansion‐Contractor Scores  

Joe H 

    

  
FAB  Tillage  Mega P  Tegrity 

Modern 
Contractors

JC 
Commercial 

A.  1  4  3  1  2  3 

B.  1  1  2  1  1  2 

C.  1  4  2  3  1  1 

D.  1  4  3  5  1  1 

E.  1  4  3  2  2  2 

F.  1  4  1  1  1  1 

G.  1  4  1  1  1  1 

H.  1  4  1  1  1  2 

I.  1  5  3  1  1  1 

Total  9  34  19  16  12  14 

             
 



 

a.  The project price; 40% 

b.  The reputation of the proposer and the proposer’s services; 10%  

c.  The quality of the proposer’s services; 5% 

d.  The extent to which the proposer’s services meets the Owner’s needs; 5% 

e.  The proposer’s past performance on other similar projects; 5% 

f.  The total long‐term cost to the Owner to acquire the proposer’s services; 5% 

g.  The ability to meet the required schedule or finish earlier than the required schedule; 10% 

h.  The owner reserves the right to reject all bids 

i.  Other relevant factors as follows:  the Owner prefers to select a proposer in which the firm and both the Project Manager and the onsite Construction 

Superintendent have served in their respective capacities on two successful completed facilities having similar components with a construction contract 

value of over $3,000,000; 20% 



From: Poindexter, Mark [mailto:MPoindexter@rockwall.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, June 10, 2014 12:50 PM 
To: Donna Bradshaw 
Subject: RE: Reference for Speed, Fab Crete 
 

1.       Would you use Speed, Fab Crete again? The answer is Yes.  I will go on to say, I would demand 
that Roger Hamm, Superintendent and Janis Petry, Project Manager would have to be over my 
project. Because of the two of them it was a great experience and many of the issues were 
handled in the field. I can’t say enough great things about them.  

2.       How many “change orders” did you have? I do not remember but it somewhere between three 
to five. We had a GMP and if we finished construction under GMP them we got a percentage of 
the funds back. We made some field adjustments during construction which saved money and 
got us a better finished product.  We also had about 8 to 10 percent contingency on top of GMP 
and we did not touch it at all.  

3.       I will have to say the tough part was getting the plans correct prior to construction. I was a pain 
in Chuck Freemans side because it took him several (too many) attempts to get the plans almost 
corrected from the owner comments and code compliance stand point. Finally Mr. Bloxom said 
the rest of the changes would be handled in the field.  

 
Again I would use David Bloxom again tomorrow if we had funds to build a building. We would just have 
to have an understanding about Mr. Freeman involvement. Mr. Bloxom would also have to agree to 
allow Hamm and Petry  to be over the project.  
 
Please have the Chief or the person in charge of your project call me for more details. I would also like 
for any of your group to come see our two stations and the foundation system we used. My mobile is 
214‐926‐5845.   
 
 
Mark A. Poindexter, CFE 
Fire Chief 
City of Rockwall 
385 South Goliad Street 
Rockwall, Texas 75087 
Office: 972‐771‐7770 
Direct: 972‐772‐6428 
Fax: 972-771-7772
E-mail: mpoindexter@rockwall.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This electronic message is intended to be viewed only by the individual or 
entity to whom it is addressed. It may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from 
disclosure under applicable law. Any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is 
strictly prohibited without my prior permission. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, 
or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, or if you have 
received this communication in error, please notify me immediately by return e-mail and delete the 
original message and any copies of it from your computer system. Thank You! 
 
From: Donna Bradshaw [mailto:dbradshaw@lucastexas.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, June 10, 2014 8:55 AM 



To: Poindexter, Mark 
Subject: Reference for Speed, Fab Crete 
 
The City of Lucas will be building a Fire Hall in the near future and have accepted bids from several 
contractors,  
your name is listed as a reference for Speed, Fab Crete. 
 
My group has asked me to call the listed references with two questions: 
 

1.       Would you use Speed, Fab Crete again? 
2.       How many “change orders” did you have? 

 



Item No. 08 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn Development Services Director 
 
 

Agenda Item:    
 
Discuss and consider the approval of a Development Agreement between the City 
of Lucas and Lucas Christian Academy concerning a request to waive or defer 
required impact fees until start of the second phase of construction. 
 

Background Information :   
 
LCA feels that because there school has been open for some time that the impact fee 
schedule should not apply to them since all they are doing is moving one parcel to 
the West. When they were initially given an SUP it was for a temporary use their 
current location was never intended as a permanent location so impact were not 
charged when they opened, nor should they have been charged for a temporary use. 
LCA also feels they are being hit with road improvement twice because the city 
required them to put in turn lanes. Per our ordinance we do not give out credit for 
road improvements that only improve conditions on site. 
 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Existing approved SUP ordinance. 
2. Copy of approved site plan for the site 
3. Development Agreement  

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    
 
Potentially a loss to of $74,201.43 
 
 

City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No. 08 

Recommendation:    
 
Staff would recommend deferring road impact fees until the start of phase 2 
construction. At that time if the city wanted to reconsider waiving the fees because 
the road improvements done by LCA helped traffic flow beyond their site we could 
do so at that time. 
 
Motion:    
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the Development Agreement between the City of 
Lucas and Lucas Christian Academy concerning a request to waive or defer required 
impact fees until start of the second phase of construction. 















 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 1 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
    § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 

 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made by and among the City of 
Lucas, Texas (the “City”) and Lucas Christian Academy, Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, (the 
“Academy”) (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their 
respective authorized officers. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Academy owns approximately 15.875 acres of property located at 505 W. 
Lucas Road, in Lucas, Texas, being further described in Exhibit “A” (“Land”), and intends to 
construct a private school in two phases.  Phase One construction shall consist of a 41,000 square 
foot school building; and, Phase Two construction shall consist of a gym to a theater, double court 
basketball and volleyball gym, field house, sport fields and parking lot (hereinafter defined as the 
“Completed Facility”) on the Land; and  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has 
adopted an ordinance that assesses roadway and water impact fees against new development and 
requires such fees to be paid at the time the City issues a building permit; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Academy has advised the City that a contributing factor that would 
assist them in the development of the Completed Facility would be an agreement by the City to 
allow the Academy to defer the payment of roadway impact fees in the amount of $74,201.43 
(the “Impact Fees”) until the commencement of construction for Phase Two of the Completed 
Facility; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that entering into a Development 
Agreement that allows the Academy to defer payment of the Impact Fees will further assist the 
Academy in its development of the Completed Facility; and, that the City and its inhabitants will 
benefit from the construction of the Completed Facility; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, and other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
Article I 

Definitions 
 
 Wherever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them: 

 
“Academy” shall mean Lucas Christian Academy, a Texas non-profit corporation.  
 

 “City” shall mean the City of Lucas, Texas. 



 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 2 

 
“Commencement of Construction” shall mean at the time the City issues a building 
permit for Phase Two.  

 
“Effective Date” shall mean the last date of execution hereof. 
  
“Expiration Date” shall mean the Parties have fully satisfied their respective obligations 
herein or June 19, 2019, whichever occurs first. 
 
“Impact Fees” shall mean roadway impact fees assessed by the City against the Land in 
the amount of $74,201.43. 
 
“Phase Two” shall mean: the Commencement of Construction of any of the following: 
the conversion of the Gym to a theater, double court basketball and volleyball gym, field 
house, sports fields and parking lot or the Commencement of Construction on the Land of 
any additional facilities. 
 

Article II 
Term 

 
 The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall continue until the 
Expiration Date, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 
 

Article III 
Impact Fee Deferred 

 
Subject to the Academy’s continued satisfaction of all the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, the City agrees to defer the payment of the Impact Fees owed by the Academy to the 
City until the Commencement of Construction for Phase Two or the Expiration Date, whichever 
occurs first.   

 
Article IV 

Termination 
 

This Agreement shall terminate upon any one of the following: 
 
(a) by written agreement of the Parties; 
(b)  on the Expiration Date; 
(c)  by any Party in the event the other Party breaches any of the terms or conditions 

of this Agreement and such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after written 
notice thereof; or 

(d)  by City and/or Academy, if any subsequent Federal or State legislation or any 
decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or renders this Agreement 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

Article V 



 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 3 

Miscellaneous 
 
 5.1 Binding Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 
upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Parties hereto.   
 
 5.2 Limitation on Liability.  It is understood and agreed between the Parties that the 
City and the Academy, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, have acted independently, 
and assume no responsibilities or liabilities to third-parties in connection with these actions.  
 
 5.3 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture among 
the Parties. 
 
 5.4 Authorization.  Each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 
 5.5 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received (i) three (3) days after deposit into the United States Mail, postage prepaid, 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address set forth below or 
(ii) on the day actually received if sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered. 
 
 If intended for City, to:  With a copy to: 
 
 City of Lucas, Texas   Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 Attn: Joni Clarke, City Manager Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
 665 Country Club Road  1800 Ross Tower 
 Lucas, Texas 75002   500 N. Akard 
      Dallas, Texas 75201 
 
 If intended for Academy, to: 
 
 Lucas Christian Academy 
 Attn: Michael T. Phipps 
 President, LCA Advisory Board 
 505 West Lucas Road 
 Lucas, Texas 75002 
 
 5.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire agreement between the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement.  There is no other collateral oral or written 
Agreement between the Parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this Agreement, 
except as provided in any exhibits attached hereto. 
 
 5.7 Governing Law.  The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in the State District Court of 
Collin County, Texas.  The Parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of 
said court. 



 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 4 

 
 5.8 Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by a written agreement 
executed by both Parties. 
 

5.9 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is 
the intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, 
valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable. 

 
5.10 Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 

Parties to it and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and permitted assigns.  This Agreement may not be assigned by the Academy 
without the prior written consent of the City. 

 
5.11 Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall be for any reason held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision(s) hereof, and 
this Agreement shall be revised so as to cure such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision(s) 
to carry out as near as possible the original intent of the Parties. 

 
5.12 Binding Obligations.  This Agreement and all amendments hereto shall be 

recorded in the deed records of the County.  In addition, all assignments to this Agreement shall 
be recorded in the deed records of the County.  This Agreement, when recorded, shall be binding 
upon the Parties and their successors and assigns permitted by this Agreement and upon the 
Land.  
 

5.13 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, and 
may only be enforced by, the Parties.  

  

 
 

[Signature Page to Follow] 
 



 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 5 

EXECUTED in duplicate originals the ____ day of _______________, 2014. 
 

City of Lucas, Texas 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Rebecca Mark, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
 (06-10-14/66585) 

  
 
 
 
 EXECUTED in duplicate originals the ____ day of _______________, 2014. 
 
 

Lucas Christian Academy 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Michael T. Phipps 
 President, LCA Advisory Board 
  
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF LUCAS/LUCAS CHRISTIAN ACADEMY, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

Exhibit “A” 
Land Description 

 



Item No. 09 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider allowing staff to move forward with annexations for 
Edgewood Estates, Claremont Springs Phase 2, Cimarron, and two lots containing 
fireworks stands on E. Lucas Road.    
 

Background Information:   
 
Council denied these items at the November 21, 2013 City Council meeting. With 
recent developments staff is asking for reconsideration for annexation. The recent 
developments are the cities paid fire staff and ambulance service. Concerns 
regarding the safety of resident’s city and ETJ. Concerns regarding the ability of the 
dispatch to accurately dispatch ambulance and fire service to the right department. 
There is also a significant financial impact for the city based property tax revenue to 
the general fund. Outstanding drainage issues within the right of way in Cimarron 
have been solved. Drainage issues on private property in Cimarron have not been 
solved. There will be a onetime expense for drainage issues in Claremont Springs 
Phase 2. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Tax breakdown of Edgewood Cimarron, and Claremont Springs. 
2. Water rate and surcharge breakdown of Edgewood, Cimarron, and 

Claremont Springs. 
3. Map showing locations of proposed annexations. 
4. Run call for Lucas Fire Rescue last three years.  
5. Minutes November 21 City Council meeting. 

 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 



Item No. 09 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 

1. Gain in general fund from property taxes $198,903.52 based on 2012 tax 
information 

2. Loss in revenue to the water fund $85,105 based on 2012 numbers. 
3. Onetime expense of $63,000 +/- for drainage issues Claremont Springs 

Phase 2. 
 

Recommendation:     
 
Approve the annexations prior to December 31, 2014. 
 
Motion:     
 
I make a Motion to direct/not direct Staff to move forward with annexations for 
Edgewood Estates, Claremont Springs Phase 2, Cimarron, and two lots containing 
fireworks stands on E. Lucas Road. 





















 

Yellow: Is annexed into the city 

Black:  has an approved development agreement providing for annexation 

White: Is available for annexation 
Blue: Is Property with a boundary agreement staff would like to alter  

Blue arrows indicate 

properties on the 

Agenda in June for 

Annexation 



 # of lots out of city   Total assesed Value 

Claremont 23 $10,831,320.00

Cimarron 27 $14,236,858.00

Edgewood 48 $27,972,761.00

98 $53,040,939.00

 # of lots out of city   Total assesed Value 

Claremont 23 $11,743,589.00

Cimarron 27 $13,563,658.00

Edgewood 48 $28,726,764.00

98 $54,034,011.00

20

20



 Total taxes based on assesed value 

8/12/12 

thru 

8/12/13 

 In City 

Rate 

 ETJ 

surcharge 

$40,617.45 $44,254.00 $29,502.67 $14,751.33

$53,388.22 $79,541.00 $53,027.33 $26,513.67

$104,897.85 $131,520.00 $87,680.00 $43,840.00

$198,903.52 $255,315.00 $170,210.00 $85,105.00

 Total taxes based on assesed value 

5/20/13 

thru 

5/20/14 

 In City 

Rate 

 ETJ 

surcharge 

$44,038.46 $43,008.00 $28,672.00 $14,336.00

$50,863.72 $65,153.00 $43,435.33 $21,717.67

$107,725.37 $110,237.00 $74,116.67 $36,120.33

$202,627.54 $218,398.00 $146,224.00 $72,174.00

012

013















Item No. 10 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo, City Secretary 

Joni Clarke, City Manager 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the use of city facilities for non-city business meetings and 
events. 
 

Background Information:  
 
At the May 1, 2014, regular City Council meeting, a discussion occurred on the use 
of city facilities by the general public.  Staff was directed to further evaluate the 
availability of meeting and event space for use by the public to help guide the 
decision by the elected officials on the use of the Council Chambers and the use of 
the training room at the Lucas Fire Station when it is completed.  Administrative 
Assistant Jennifer Faircloth contacted a variety of organizations and created the 
attached spreadsheet depicting the availability of meeting space in the Lucas 
community. 
 
The City of Lucas currently rents the use of its pavilions and ball fields (see 
attached Lucas Park Reservation and Facility Use Agreement).  They has been 
some casual conversation regarding the training room associated with the Fire 
Station Addition Project being made available for public use.  While conceptually 
this may sound like a good idea, it would be difficult to impose an additional 
administrative function on the Fire Department at this juncture.  
 
To allow the public use of the City Council Chambers during regular business 
hours from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday excluding City recognized 
holidays and weekends.  This would be a cost-effective proposal as those 
requesting use of the chambers would have to reserve it for use when it would not 
conflict with any city-related meeting or event and be responsible for set-up and 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  June 19, 2014 



Item No. 10 

restoring the room after use.  City staff time would be kept at a minimum.  This 
would be limited to use by City of Lucas citizens and a driver’s license or utility 
invoice would be required to illustrate proof of residency.  The use of the Council 
Chambers would be limited to activities that would not disrupt the daily operations 
of the City and left at the discretion of the City Manager.  No political activity 
would be allowed in the chambers.  Reservations would be kept using an outlook 
calendar and made on a first come first served basis, up to a year in advance.  No 
fee will be charged and the number of times a citizen can use the Council Chamber 
would not be limited at this time and may be subject to change should demand for 
the room warrant such a change. 
 
There are other facilities available in the Lucas community and this proposed use 
of the Council Chambers can be provided without experiencing additional strain on 
City of Lucas resources. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. List of Community Facilities  
2. Lucas Park Reservation/Facility Use Agreement 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
There will be no additional expense associated with the recommendation.   
 

Recommendation:  
 
To allow the public use of the City Council Chambers during regular business 
hours from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday excluding city recognized 
holidays and weekends.  Staff would recommend reevaluation of the use of the 
training room at the Fire Station at a future date. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the public use of the City Council Chambers 
during regular business hours from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday 
excluding city recognized holidays and weekends. 



Name of Facility Contact Person Contact  Number

Does your 

organization have 

a meeting room 

open to  public 

use?

Who could use the 

meeting room?

How many people could 

the room hold?

Any fees 

associated ‐ 

Deposits/hourly 

rates?

How does one 

reserve the rom?

Food/or drinks 

allowed in the 

room?

How often could 

a person reserve 

the room?

What hours is 

the room 

available?

Cornerstone Baptist 

Church
JoAnn 972‐475‐3149

Scheduled on a 

group by group 

basis

based on approval 

from the Pastor

50‐300 depending on the 

room used
Varies

Contact the 

Church for 

approval to 

reserve a room

Yes
Depends on 

availability 

Depends on 

availability

Grace Church Lavonia 972‐727‐4512 Yes
based on approval 

from the Pastor

40‐300 depending on the 

room used

$100 for the first 

hour and $50 for 

the next hour

schedule through 

Church office
Yes

Depends on 

availability 

Depends on 

availability

Good Shepard United 

Methodist Church
Cheryl 972‐429‐0295 Yes

HOA and Non‐Profit 

Groups

depends on which room 

used

No charge for Non‐

Profit Groups

schedule through 

Church office

Yes, with the 

exception of the 

sanctuary 

Depends on 

availability 

Available during 

the daytime 

anytime night 

hours depends 

on church 

schedule and all 

meeting must 

end by 9:30 pm

Forest Grove 

Christian Church

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

9725‐562‐9025

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information avaiable on 

this facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

No information 

avaiable on this 

facility 

Lucas Christian 

Academy
Luke Crain 972‐429‐4362

Not at this time ‐ 

Maybe when new 

bldg. is complete

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Faith Fellowship
Receptionist at Faith 

Fellowship
972‐442‐2121 Yes

depends on the 

purpose of the 

meeting and what 

the organizations 

core values and 

beliefs are, and the 

availability of the 

facility

Sanctuary ‐ 200       

Fellowship Hall ‐ 100        

Rock (old sanctuary) ‐ 50    

Classrooms ‐ 20‐30

depends on the 

organization using 

the room

Contact Faith 

Fellowship and 

speak with the 

Receptionist

Yes, with the 

exception of the 

Sanctuary where 

only water is 

allowed 

Depends on 

availability 

Monday, 
Tuesday, 
Thursday, 
Friday, and 
Saturday.  
These days 
depend on Faith 
Fellowship 
schedules as 
well as other 
prior 
reservations.

Possible Meeting Locations Within the City of Lucas



Willow Springs 

Middle School
Deanna 469‐742‐8500 Yes 

Non‐Profit Groups 

(Girls Scouts, Boy 

Scouts, HOA Groups)

Cafeteria holds up to 300    

Classroom  has 60 chairs

depends on the 

organization using 

the room

Contact each 

campus directly, 

complete 

paperwork, and 

wait for approval 

from Mr. Puckett 

at LISD

Yes ‐ with the 

exception being 

the Gym

Depends on 

availability 

Typical time 

frame ‐ after 

school until 

about 9:00 pm 

not available on 

Sundays or 

during Summer 

Months

Hart Elementary Laura Thomas 469‐742‐8200 Yes 

Non‐Profit Groups 

(Girls Scouts, Boy 

Scouts, HOA Groups)

Cafeteria holds up to 300    

Classroom  has 60 chairs

depends on the 

organization using 

the room

Contact each 

campus directly, 

complete 

paperwork, and 

wait for approval 

from Mr. Puckett 

at LISD

Yes ‐ with the 

exception being 

the Gym

Depends on 

availability 

Typical time 

frame ‐ after 

school until 

about 9:00 pm 

not available on 

Sundays or 

during Summer 

Months

Lovejoy High School Linda Fleming 469‐742‐8700 Yes 

Non‐Profit Groups 

(Girls Scouts, Boy 

Scouts, HOA Groups)

Cafeteria holds up to 300    

Classroom  has 60 chairs

depends on the 

organization using 

the room

Contact each 

campus directly, 

complete 

paperwork, and 

wait for approval 

from Mr. Puckett 

at LISD

Yes ‐ with the 

exception being 

the Gym

Depends on 

availability 

Typical time 

frame ‐ after 

school until 

about 9:00 pm 

not available on 

Sundays or 

during Summer 

Months



Development Services Dept./Parks/Field Reservation 08/19/11 
 

LUCAS PARK RESERVATION 
972-727-8999 FAX 972-727-0091 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 
 

Date Requested:  ___________   Time:  From _____________To_____________ 
 
Person requesting reservations: 
 
Name: _______________________________________________________________  
 
Phone:  ____________________Other Phone:  ___________________________  
 
Name of Team: ___________________________ Grade/Age: ______________ 
 
□ Resident     □ Non-resident 
□ Copy of driver’s license required 
      
Field Requested:   
□ Pavilion beside City Hall 
□ Pavilion at the Kenneth R. Lewis Comm. Park 
□ Field A U8 30yd x 20yd  
□ Field B 200ft to R & L Field (Softball/Baseball)  
□ Field C U8 30yd x 20yd 
□ Field D U10 60yd x 40yd  
□ Volleyball Court 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Facility    Deposit  Time Block  Fee 
 
Community Pavilions   
Resident   $100   No Time Block $0 
 
Non-resident   $100   Up to 3 hours  $175 
The pavilions may be reserved one time in each 30 day period.      

Ball Fields 

Resident   0   Hourly Use  $0 
 
Non-resident   $75   Hourly Use  $25 per hour 
 
For Profit   $150   Hourly Use  $50 per hour 
 
 
Please have a copy of the reservation confirmation when using the 

facility.  If the field is not reserved, it is available on a first come, first 

serve basis.  If you have questions concerning field/pavilion scheduling or 



Development Services Dept./Parks/Field Reservation 08/19/11 
 

maintenance, please contact Lucas City Hall during business hours.  All 

facilities must be left in a clean and orderly manner.  Anyone using the 

facility will be responsible for removing any trash or debris following 

usage.  If determined that the area was left unclean, the deposit will be 

forfeited by the renting party. 

  

Deposit amount $___________ 

Fee amount $________________ 

Date Reservation Received:  _____________ Approved by:  ___________________ 
 
Keys Issued ______________________       Keys Returned ___________________ 
 
 



Item No. 11 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Adjournment. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to adjourn the City Council meeting at     p.m. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2014 


	00 cc-20140619 council agenda
	00 Attendance sheet
	01 citizens' input cs
	02 community interest cs
	03a  minutes cs
	03a cc-20140605 regular minutes
	03b parks grant cs
	03b R-2014-06-00422 Collin County Parks and Open Space Grant
	03b parks grant application
	03c Lovejoy agreement cs
	03c Lovejoy ISD Interlocal Re Lucas EMS Services at Home Games66376
	03d 03e tml docs cs
	03d tml interlocal
	03e tml cobra agreement
	04 stormwater program update cs
	04 stormwater_training presentation
	05 K-H Prof Serv Agreement cs
	05 KHA Traffic Contract
	06 IT Migration cs
	06 Cloud Vs In-House Migration Analysis by Baxter IT
	06 Baxter IT Est 82 Jun 9
	07 fire station expansion cs
	07 Central Fire Station Expansion-Contractor Scores June 9 2014 fire department
	07 Joe H Central Fire Station Expansion-Contractor Scores June 9 2014
	07 Reference Fab Crete
	08 Development agreement LCA cs
	08 Existing ordinance for LCA
	08 LCA Site plan
	08 Lucas Christian Academy Development Agreement66585
	09 general annexations, claremont cs
	09 11212013-52
	09 annexation map
	09 Copy of Working Prop Values Cimarron Edgewood Claremont
	09 Run Counts Edgewood, clarement, cimarron
	10 use of public facilities cs
	10 Community Rooms
	10 FIELD RESERVATION FORM
	11 adjournment cs

